Oneida Education Association Negotiated and Procedural Agreement

2019 -2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS:

PROCEDURAL AGREEMENT

PREAMBLE

- 1 DEFINITIONS
- 2 GENERAL
- 3 RECOGNITION
 - 3-5 PETITION PROCEDURES
 - 3-6 NOTICE OF THE CALL FOR AN ELECTION
 - 3-7 PLACING THE NAME OF AN ORGANIZATION

ON THE BALLOT

3-8 THE ELECTION AND SUBSEQUENT

RECOGNITION - LIMITATIONS

- 3-9 INITIAL ELECTION
- 3-10 EFFECTIVE DATE
- 3-11 SAVING CLAUSE

ARTICLE 4

PROCEDURE FOR NEGOTIATIONS

- 5-1 BEGINNING AND CLOSING DATES FOR NEGOTIATIONS:
- 5-2 THE ONLY ITEMS CONSIDERED TO BE NEGOTIABLE:
- 5-3 PRESENTATION OF PROPOSALS FOR CONSIDERATION OF NEGOTIATION FOR ENSUING YEAR:
- 5-4 EXCHANGE OF NAMES OF NEGOTIATING TEAM MEMBERS:
- 5-5 MEMBERS OF NEGOTIATING TEAMS:
- 5-6 LENGTH OF MEETINGS:
- 5-7 PLACE OF MEETINGS:

- 5-8 TIMES OF MEETINGS:
- 5-9 EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION:
- 5-10 OPEN OR CLOSED NEGOTIATIONS MEETINGS:
- 5-11 EXCHANGE OF MINUTES OF MEETINGS
- 5-12 NEWS RELEASES:
- 5-13 RATIFICATION:
- 5-14 CONTINUING AGREEMENT:
- II ASSOCIATION RIGHTS
- III LEAVES
 - 3-1 Sick Leave
 - 3-2 Sick Leave Bank
 - 3-3 Bereavement Leave

Personal Leave

Maternity Leave

- 3.4 Extended Illness
- 3.5 Military

IV WORK YEAR

- 4.1 Work Year
- 4.2 Work Day
- V DUTIES
- VI PROFESSIONAL IMPROVEMENT
- VII PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

VIII INSURANCE PROVISIONS

- IX VANDALISM FUND
- X PAY FOR PERFORMANCE/COMMON CORE/ SMARTER BALANCE
- XI DURATION

APPENDIX A

SALARY SCHEDULE

APPENDIX B

EXTRA DUTY COMPENSATION

PROCEDURAL AGREEMENT

PREAMBLE

This Procedural Agreement is entered into by and between the board of Trustees of Oneida School District #351 and the Oneida Education Association (Recognized Teachers' Organization).

The Board and the Representative Teachers' Organization recognize and agree that the major and paramount purpose and objective of the Board, Administration, Teachers, and Non-Certificated employees is to provide the very best and highest quality of education to the students (collectively and individually) of this school district, which the resources we have available will provide. The welfare of the students must have highest priority and must receive preferential consideration and treatment.

The Board is elected by the qualified electors of the school district and, as such, possesses all powers delegated to a Board of Trustees or to a school district by the constitution and laws of the state of Idaho, together with the duties imposed thereby. These powers, duties and responsibilities cannot be negotiated to another person or organization.

The Superintendent is the chief executive officer of the school district, and as such, administers the affairs and programs of the school district as provided by law and board policy.

Providing education of the highest possible quality for the students of the school district is the responsibility of the Board. It is recognized that the teachers have a significant role as a result of direct contact with students; therefore, the high morale of the teaching staff depends on the willing services of well qualified teachers.

It is recognized that the best interests of public education will be served by a spirit of cooperation.

ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

- 1-1 The terms "School District" and "Oneida Public Schools" as used in this
 - procedural agreement shall mean Oneida School District #351 of Oneida County in the State of Idaho.
- 1 -2 The term "Board" as used in this agreement shall mean the Board of Trustees of Oneida School District #351 of Oneida County in the State of Idaho.
- 1-3 The term "Superintendent" as used in this agreement shall mean the

Superintendent of Schools of Oneida School District #351 in the State of Idaho.

- 1 -4 The term "Teachers' Representative Organization" as used in this agreement shall mean the professional certificated teachers' organization that is elected according to specified procedure and recognized by the Board of Trustees of Oneida School District #351, to represent all district employed certificated teachers; except the Superintendent, Principals, and any other certificated personnel who function in administrative or supervisory capacities. The Administrators and Supervisors shall not be a member or part of any teacher organization nor be represented by a "Teachers' Representative Organization," but shall be represented by an "Administrators' Representative Organization."
- 1-5 The term "Professional Teacher Employee" as used in this agreement means any certificated employee of Oneida School District #351; except the Superintendent, Principals, and any other certificated personnel who function in administrative or supervisory capacities.

ARTICLE 2 GENERAL

- 2-1 This Procedural Agreement shall be part of the contract of each professional employee, except the Superintendent, Principals, and any other certificated personnel who function in administrative or supervisory capacities.
- 2-2 Instruction is the primary function of the teacher and his or her major efforts should be directed toward improving this process.
- 2-3 The Board shall continue its agreement of not discriminating against any teacher on basis of race, creed, religion, color, national origin, sex, marital status, or membership in any teacher organization.
- 2-4 The Representative Organization shall continue to admit persons to membership without discrimination on the basis of race, creed, religion, color, national origin, sex, or marital status.
- 2-5 The Board recognizes that in pursuit of the profession of teaching, teachers have a right to join or refrain from joining any teachers' organization for their professional and economic improvement, and that as a matter of individual choice, teachers are free to join or refrain from joining such organizations.
 - The recognized representative of teachers' organization shall not discriminate against any certificated teacher because of membership or non-membership in any teacher organization.

- 2-6 The Board of Trustees may change policy from time to time as the need exists. Such changes, when approved by official Board action, become Board policies and are binding on all parties. Every effort will be made by the Board to honor existing agreements. Communication between the Board and the Representative Organization will take place in advance of possible policy changes.
- 2.7 This Procedural Agreement shall be governed and construed according to the Constitution and laws of the State of Idaho.
- 2.8 The Board and the Representative Organization recognize that the Board has certain powers, discretions and duties that, under the Constitution and laws of the State of Idaho, may not be delegated, limited or abrogated by agreement with an party. Accordingly, if any provision of this Agreement, or any application of this Agreement to any teacher covered hereby shall be found to be contrary to law, such provision or application shall have effect only to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications of this agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 3 - RECOGNITION

- 3-1 The Teacher's Representative Organization selected for the purpose of negotiations by the majority of the professional employees, except the Superintendent, Principals, and any other certificated personnel who function in administrative or supervisory capacities in Oneida School District #351, shall be the exclusive representative for all professional certificated employees in the district for purposes of negotiations.
- 3-2 The Board's designated representative(s) shall negotiate matters covered by this Procedural Agreement with the Representative Organization elected by secret ballot by the Professional employees of School District #351, except the Superintendent, Principals, and any other certificated personnel who function in administrative, supervisory or counseling capacities.
- 3-2-1 Ballots will be jointly prepared by the District and representatives from each organization seeking representation.
- 3-2-2 The election will be conducted under the auspices of the District Administration according to standard election procedures.
- 3-2-3 Election officials will be selected jointly by the organization(s) seeking representation and the District Administration.

- 3-2-4 Canvassing of the ballots will be conducted jointly by representatives of the organization(s) seeking representation and the District Administration.
- 3-2-5 All costs of the election shall be paid for by the organization requesting the election. is agreed that the term "professional employee" shall include the following:
- 3-3-1 The term "Professional Teacher Employee" as used in this agreement means any teacher hired as a certificated employee except the Superintendent, Principals, and any other certificated personnel who function in administrative or supervisory capacities.

Such recognition, once established as described in Article 3-2 shall be effective during each year of the term of this procedural agreement, or any renewal thereof. Within ninety (90) days and not less than sixty (60) days prior to December 31 of any year the Board may call for a new election to select the representative organization.

Any teachers' organization desiring to become the Teachers' Recognized Representative Organization must submit a written request to the Board of Trustees of Oneida School District #351 through the Superintendent for an election.

The written request must be accompanied by a petition signed by no less than 30% of the certified teacher employees (except the Superintendent, Principals, and any other certificated personnel who function in administrative or supervisory capacities) of Oneida School District #351.

The Written Request for an election together with the petition must be presented to the superintendent not more than ninety (90) days or less than sixty (60) days prior to December 31.

PETITION PROCEDURES

Petition forms to be used in filing a request for representative election shall be prepared by the Superintendent of Schools and be made available to members of the petitioning body upon written request to the Superintendent.

The forms of the petition shall be such as to indicate that those who sign are certifying that (1) they have read this agreement of the District; (2) that they request the Board to call a representative election pursuant to provisions set forth in this agreement, and (3) that, to the best of their knowledge, they are employees of the

District who would be eligible for inclusion in the negotiating unit. A copy of this agreement shall be attached to all petition forms.

NOTICE OF THE CALL FOR AN ELECTION

Within thirty (30) days following, the receipt of such petition, by the Superintendent of Schools, bearing the valid and certified signatures of at least thirty percent (30) of the employees of the District who would be eligible for inclusion in the negotiating unit, the Board of Trustees shall cause notice to be posted for a period often (10) days in each school, and the District Office, such notice to include the following:

- A. The date of the posting of the notice
- B. A statement to the effect that a petition has been duly filed with the Board requesting that a representative election be held and that such request has been entered into the minutes of the Board
- C. A statement to the effect that a representative election will be held on a specified date to determine which organization, if any, should be named the exclusive representative of the employees of the District pursuant to the provision of this agreement, and
- D. A statement identifying persons eligible to vote in the election by reason of eligibility for inclusion in the unit.

PLACING THE NAME OF AN ORGANIZATION ON THE BALLOT

The name of any organization limiting its membership to certificated employees of the District will be placed on the ballot for the representative election if the following are filed with the Superintendent of Schools at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for the election:

A. A copy of the constitution and by-laws of the organization.

- B. A statement naming the officers of the organization and giving the dates on which the terms of office for the named officers shall expire.
- C. A statement, signed by the officers of the organization, certifying that the named officers have been duly authorized to represent the membership (if their group is declared the Teachers' Representative Organization) in seeking to establish a negotiated agreement with the Board of Trustees.

THE ELECTION AND SUBSEQUENT RECOGNITION - LIMITATIONS

The Board of Trustees hereby agrees to call a representative election not less than fifteen (15) or more than thirty (30) days following the date of the expiration of the notices as set forth above. The form of the ballot, and the procedures and rules governing the conduct of the election and the canvassing of ballots shall be established by the committee of an equal number of representatives from the Board and the organization(s) desiring to be listed on the ballot and or such committee may agree upon an impartial party to conduct such election.

Voting in the election shall be limited to persons eligible for inclusion in the negotiating unit as set forth in this agreement. The choices to be listed on the ballot shall include "no organization," and the name of each organization which has been duly nominated for designation as the representative pursuant to provisions of this policy. The official eligibility lists shall be determined from the last payroll before the election.

The choice receiving a simple majority of the total number of votes of persons eligible to vote in the election shall, upon the canvassing of the ballots, be declared the designated choice of organization representation for a period of one year beginning January 1 next following the designation of a representative group, and petitions for subsequent elections will be received not less than sixty (60) nor more than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the period of representation. Provided that, if less than a simple majority of the eligible voters vote in a representative election, the Board shall determine that no organization has qualified for recognition and no run-off election shall be held; and further subsequent petitions may be received only in the month of October subsequent to the date of the election.

If more than two choices appear on the ballot and no choice receives a simple majority of the total number of votes cast, a run-off election shall be held within a period of fifteen (15) days. The choices appearing on the ballot at such an election shall be the two choices, including "No Representation," receiving the largest number of votes in the first election. All cost relating to the conducting of representative elections shall be born by the organization requesting the election.

At the next regular School Board meeting following the date of the representative election, or run-off election, the Committee (as selected above) shall officially canvass the ballots. Upon determining that an organization has been elected to be recognized as the representative of all personnel eligible for inclusion in the negotiating unit, the Board shall adopt a resolution so recognizing that organization for the period, purposes, and in accordance with the provisions set forth in this policy. Recognition will be automatically extended until the Board receives petitions for representation elections pursuant to this agreement.

3-9 INITIAL ELECTION

In accordance with the guidelines as provided in this agreement, the Superintendent of Schools shall call the initial election to permit employees of the District to determine whether an organization shall be recognized by the Board as representative of such employees; except that no petition shall be required.

3-10 EFFECTIVE DATE

This agreement shall take effect July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

3-11 SAVING CLAUSE

In the adoption of this agreement, the Board hereby declares that nothing contained herein is intended to be so constructed as to delegate or limit the powers, duties, discretions, and responsibilities of a Board of Education as prescribed by the Constitution and laws of the State of Idaho. If any provision of this agreement or any application of this agreement shall be found to be contrary to law, such provisions or application shall have effect only to the extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE 4

4-1 After the Board has given due consideration to all matters of concern a decision will be rendered by the Board. That decision is binding on all parties.

<u>ARTICLE V – PROCEDURES FOR NEGOTIATIONS</u>

5-1 BEGINNING AND CLOSING DATES FOR NEGOTIATIONS:

Negotiations may be initiated by a written request by either party.

- 5-2 THE ONLY ITEMS CONSIDERED TO BE NEGOTIABLE:
- a. Wages
- b. Fringe Benefits:

A fringe benefit shall be defined as:

Group Insurance

Personal Leave

Other items as mutually agreed upon

- c. Credit Requirement
- 5-3 PRESENTATION OF PROPOSALS FOR CONSIDERATION OF NEGOTIATION FOR ENSUING YEAR:
- a. At the first negotiation meeting the Recognized Teachers Representative Organization and the Board shall have prepared in writing a complete listing of items to be considered for negotiations. A copy of this listing will be provided each member of each team. After this list has been

submitted no other items shall be considered, unless mutually agreed

upon by both parties. After this exchange of lists, negotiations shall begin.

5-4 EXCHANGE OF NAMES OF NEGOTIATING TEAM MEMBERS:

On or before April 1, both parties shall exchange names of the Chairman and members of the Negotiating Team.

5-5 MEMBERS OF NEGOTIATING TEAMS:

Both teams shall represent their respective organizations and shall otherwise meet the requirements specified in this agreement.

Both teams shall have an identified Chairman.

Members on either team may not exceed three (3) members, including the Chairman, at any one time.

A majority from each team shall constitute a quorum.

A meeting shall not be held if less than a quorum of each team is present.

5-6 LENGTH OF MEETINGS:

Meetings will automatically be adjourned two (2) hours after the agreed upon starting time (this includes caucus time), unless both parties agree to extend the length of the meeting.

5-7 PLACE OF MEETINGS:

Negotiations will be conducted in the Superintendent's office unless another place shall be mutually agreed upon.

5-8 TIME OF MEETINGS:

Negotiations meetings will be held at times mutually agreed upon by both teams, but not during regular school hours.

5-9 EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION:

During negotiations, the Board and Teachers' Representative Organization teams will present relevant data, exchange points of view, and make proposals and counter proposals.

The representative teams will endeavor to reflect the positions of the Board and the Recognized Representative Organization.

Upon request of either party, the other will make available for inspection its records and data pertinent to the subject of negotiations.

5-10 OPEN OR CLOSED NEGOTIATIONS MEETINGS:

All negotiations meetings shall be open to the public. Team caucus meetings may be closed.

5-11 EXCHANGE OF MINUTES OF MEETINGS:

Upon the request of either team, written minutes of a meeting will be exchanged.

5-12 NEWS RELEASES:

News releases may be made by either party without permission or notice to the other party.

5-13 RATIFICATION:

All items agreed to by both negotiating teams are tentative until ratified by the Teachers' Representative Organization and the Board of Trustees. Ratification shall be on a total package of settlement and not individual items. Ratification will comply to the provisions as stated in Idaho Code.

5-14 CONTINUING AGREEMENT:

This agreement shall become part of the total negotiated agreement. This agreement expires in its entirety on June 30, 2017 and must be renegotiated each succeeding year.

This agreement having been agreed to by both the Board of Trustees of Oneida School District #351 and the recognized Teachers' Representative Organization, is effective as of the date set forth herein.

ARTICLE II ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

2.1 Six days annually shall be allowed for professional leave for the Oneida

Education Association officers. These days shall be in addition to those days provided in Idaho Code 33-513.

2.2.1 The president of the Oneida Education Association shall not be assigned duties during the term of his/her office.

ARTICLE III

LEAVES

3.1 Sick Leave

- 3.1.1 At the beginning of each school year, each employee shall be credited with fourteen (14) days of sick leave allowance.
- 3.1.2 The unused portion of such allowance shall accumulate without limit.
- 3.1.3 Sick leave may be used for absence caused by personal or family illness or emotional upset caused by accident or circumstances which render the employee incapable of carrying on his/her assigned duties.
- 3.1.4 Childbearing or adoption shall be considered as an illness of the employee.
- 3.1.5 Employees who use sick leave shall be charged by the half day or whole day rate.

3.2 Sick Leave Bank

3.2.1 PURPOSE

Each certificated employee of the District may participate in the Sick Leave Bank. To participate, each employee shall contribute a prescribed number of his/her earned sick leave days as determined by the Sick Leave Bank Committee. The contributed sick leave days shall form a fund of sick leave days that will be available to all eligible participating certificated employees upon recommendation of the Sick Leave Bank Committee for the purpose of alleviating the hardship caused by the absence from work necessitated by extended or recurring illness.

3.2.2 APPLICATION

Application for use of the Bank shall be submitted to the Sick Leave Bank Committee for their recommendation. The Committee shall review the request and determine the eligibility of the employee. If the Committee deems necessary, it shall require proof of illness at the time of application and from time to time after a grant has been made.

3.2.3 GUIDELINES

The Committee shall have the authority to establish such guidelines as it deems necessary to implement this program. Guidelines shall have the approval of the Education Association Executive Board and the Board of Trustees. After complete review of the application, the Committee shall have the authority to make final decisions within the guidelines as to disposition of the case.

3.2.4 ELIGIBILITY

In order for an employee to be eligible to apply for sick leave benefits from the Sick Leave Bank, the employee must first: (1) <u>be a contributor</u> to the bank; (2) have been absent from work due to illness or accident; and (3) days where his/her salary was reduced by the cost of a substitute.

3.2.5 CONTRIBUTION

For the initial year of membership, each participating employee shall contribute two (2) days of his/her accumulated sick leave to the Bank. If during the first year of operation, the number of days contributed shall be insufficient to meet the needs of the Bank, each member of the Bank will be assessed days by the Committee to meet the needs of the Bank. Each subsequent year of the Bank's operation, the Sick Leave Bank Committee shall determine the number of sick leave days each participant must contribute in order to keep the bank solvent. Not to exceed 2 days per year.

Any member leaving the district who cannot take his/her sick leave with him/her shall be allowed to donate unused days to the sick leave bank. To initiate this process the member shall write a letter stating his/her desire to donate his/her unused sick leave days to the district sick leave bank.

3.2.6 MAXIMUM DAYS GRANTED

The maximum number of days that may be granted in any fiscal year will be the remaining number of days an employee is scheduled to work under his/her current contract. In no case will the granting of leave cause an employee to receive a greater amount of pay from the District than his/her annual salary for that year.

The number of sick leave days granted shall not exceed the number of days absent from work due to illness or accident.

3.2.7 EXCESS DAYS

Bank grants to individual employees will not be carried over from one fiscal year to another. All such grants will end at the termination of the school year. If a certificated employee does not use all of the days granted by the Bank, the unused sick leave days will be returned to the Bank.

3.2.8 COMMITTEE

The Sick Leave Bank Committee shall consist of two (2) members appointed by the Association and two (2) members appointed by the District and the building administrator. The Committee shall develop and distribute the rules and procedures for the orderly administration of the Bank. The Committee shall also be responsible for reporting to the District Business Office the name of contributors and the number of days contributed. The Committee shall be responsible for reporting all days granted to any certificated employee by the Sick Leave Bank and any other information necessary to maintain an adequate accounting of the operation.

Bereavement Leave

- 3.3.1. Employees shall be allowed one week or workdays for immediate family (parents, spouse or children). These days may be taken anytime within a two-week period. Three days shall be given for in-laws and additional days, if needed, will be given at the discretion of the principal. One day for all other family members. Grandparents may be counted as immediate family where they have acted as parents.
- 3.3.2 Employees will be allowed one-half day per year to be used at their discretion to attend funerals of friends or acquaintances.

Personal Leave

3.4.1 Employees will be given 35 hours of personal leave each year. Any unused personal leave at the end of the school year will be paid for at the rate of \$10.71 per hour for an 8.5 hr day or \$91.04 / day. The employee will be allowed to purchase twenty-one (21) hours of personal leave per year at the certified substitute rate of pay. Any additional time taken will then be charged at the

- employee's daily rate of pay.
- 3.4.2 Personal leave prior to or following a holiday weekend may be denied based on sub availability and numbers of teachers out of the building.
- 3.4.3 The employee will only be allowed to carry over 35 hours each year with a maximum of 70 hours per year total. These will be accrued from the 35 paid hours each year only.
- 3.4.3 Any employee using personal leave shall be charged by the hour(s) missed rather than the one half or one whole day rate.

3.5 **Maternity Leave**

- 3.5.1 Unpaid maternity shall be granted for up to two full years. An employee on maternity leave shall retain the same position on the salary schedule and the unused sick leave accumulated.
- 3.5.2 The employee taking maternity leave will be granted a 90 day leave on the group insurance. After the 90 days, she must either go on Cobra insurance or drop from the district's plan. When she returns to work, she will have to apply again for insurance.

3.6 Extended Illness

3.6.1 Any tenured teacher who needs to take a one year leave of absence for serious personal or family health reasons will be given their same position the following year.

3.7 **Military**

3.8.1 Any employee who has been called to active duty with the military shall be paid either his/her school pay or the military pay whichever they choose. The employee shall retain all benefits, salary, and seniority as though employment had been continuous in the district. Upon his/her return to the district, the employee shall be placed in the same position last held in the district.

3.8.2 The employee taking military leave will be granted a 90 day leave of absence on the group insurance. After the 90 days, he/she must either go on Cobra insurance or drop from the district's plan. When he/she returns to work, he/she will be added to the insurance as if they were never dropped.

ARTICLE IV - WORK YEAR

4.1 Work Year

4.1.1 A day or a minimal day at the end of the school year shall be provided for grading.

4.2 Work Day

- 4.2.1 Should the five day week be reinstated, students will be released on Fridays at 1:30 p.m. with teachers staying for in-service or planning until 3:00 p.m. Teachers will participate in department meetings, cross curriculum planning, grading, in-service or any faculty related projects.
 - 4.2.2 Extracurricular practices may begin immediately after school.

ARTICLE V - DUTIES

- 5.1.1 Two (2) para-professionals shall be hired at the elementary to do noon duty. Two para-professionals will be hired at each secondary building-middle and high school-to do noon duty. The District is under no obligation to provide the secondary positions if no one applies.
- 5.1.2 Any teacher hired to do noon duty shall be compensated at \$ 7.00 per day.
- 5.1.3 Teachers who work noon duty (without monetary compensation) will be provided a free lunch on those days,

ARTICLE VI

PROFESSIONAL IMPROVEMENT

6.1 **Professional Improvement**

- 6.1.1 The district shall provide five (5) days per school year for professional development and in-service.
 - 6.1.2 The district shall allow three (3) teachers from each building to attend

 Teacher institute sponsored by the State Department of Education.
 - 6.1.3 The district shall pay <u>up to \$750.00 per teacher</u> for six (6) college credits needed to meet re-certification in each five-year certification period. Credits must be approved by the superintendent prior to taking the classes.
 - 6.1.4 The District will pay \$75.00 toward teaching certification renewal.

ARTICLE VII PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

7.1 Extra Duty Compensation

Employees who do extra duties at night games shall be paid by the individual school.

7.2 Travel and Meals

The District shall reimburse the amount given for travel meals to \$7.50/meal. If a district vehicle is not available, employee will be reimbursed \$.38/mile for travel.

ARTICLE VII

INSURANCE PROVISIONS

8.1 Insurances

SEE CURRENT AGREEMENT

ARTICLE IX VANDALISM FUND

9.1 The District will cover a maximum of \$ 100 of an employees' personal insurance deductible resulting from the damage to or theft of personal property while the employee is working at school or attending a school function in Malad. The damage or theft of said property must be reported to and verified by a school administrator or local law enforcement office before leaving the premises.

ARTICLE X

PAY FOR PERMORMANCE/COMMON CORE/SMARTER BALANCE

10.1 The OEA may be involved in the discussion of procedures concerning Pay for Performance, Common Core, and Smarter Balance assessments.

ARTICLE XI

DURATION

11.1 Duration:

The provisions of this agreement will be effective as of July 1, 2019 and will continue and remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2020.

11.2 Changes in Agreement:

During its term, this agreement may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from or modified only through the voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in written and signed amendment to this agreement.

2019 – 2020 NEGOTIATIONS:

Negotiations: 2019 — 2020 agreement

- 1. Full funding of new state teacher pay scale a. \$1,000 to be added to salary each year, permanently. Increase is not on the base and is non- negotiable from year to year. (This amount is counted toward salary for retirement.)
- 2. A one-time bonus of \$500 for full time teachers who don't take the 30% insurance subsidy. (\$17,500)
- a. One-time bonus of \$250 for part-time teachers
- 3. Oneida School District to cover 30% of out of pocket insurance costs for full time teachers and related services certified staff (\$39,174.84) Stipulation: This is a one-year only coverage with the commitment that teachers work within their teacher association to review insurance options that would provide family/spouse/child insurance support which will not increase the district current insurance cost (what it would have cost prior to adding additional family support this year) this additional insurance support is a one year only costs as described above.
- 4. \$100 classroom supply money for the high school, \$150 to the middle school, \$200 to the elementary school
- 5. Oneida School District will provide health/dental/vision Insurance for all full time district employees. Increased funding to come from discretionary funding. (\$37,000)
- 6. All MOAs rolled from 2018-2019 to the new Negotiated Agreement 2019-2020.
- 7. All negotiated items already agreed to, be rolled into the new Negotiated Agreement 2019- 2020.
- 8. Post monthly payables and revenues with Association input to help insure best value of dollars spent. This information will be posted to the District web site each month, so teachers may access it. This will include salaries, expenses, and revenues. Meetings to discuss finances can be requested by OEA as needed.
- 9. P- 6: those teachers who have served in the district for 13 years will be moved to P-6 beginning their 14th year. Salary is as follows:

P-6 base	Salary enhancement	+24 credits	Masters
\$51,000	\$52,000	\$54,000	\$55,000

10. For FY21, a team of teachers will be identified, who will then work with the superintendent to discuss teacher hours and calendar days.